
 1 

City of Rochester Planning Board 
Monday April 23, 2012 
City Council Chambers 

31 Wakefield Street, Rochester, NH  03867 
(These minutes were approved on May 7, 2012) 

 
 
Members Present 
Nel Sylvain, Chair 
Tim Fontneau, Vice Chair 
Gloria Larochelle, Secretary 
James Gray 
Rick Healey 
Mark Sullivan 
Dave Walker, Councilor 
 
Members Absent 
Stephen Martineau, excused 
Derek Peters, excused 
 
Alternate Members Present 
Matthew A. Kozinski 
 
Alternate Members Absent 
Robert Jaffin, excused 
Gregory Jeanson, excused 
 
Staff:  Michael Behrendt, Chief Planner 
Marcia J. Gasses, Planning Secretary 
 
(These are the legal minutes of the meeting and are in the format of an overview of the meeting.  A 
recording of the meeting will be on file in the City Clerk’s office for reference purposes.  It may be 
copied for a fee) 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Mr. Sylvain called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
The Planning Secretary conducted the roll. 
 
Mr. Kozinski to vote for Mr. Peters. 
 
Communications from the Chair 
None 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Public Comment 
 
Gregg DeNobile - Chesley Hill Road thanked the board for the response to his prior questions.  His 
correspondence and further questions follow. 
 



 2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 3 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 5 

 
Tom Kaczynski - Stated that he had detected an anti - automobile sentiment.  Mr. Kaczynski 
questioned how people can use their property without getting permission from government. 
 
Robert Gates - Dry Hill Road wanted to see the requirement under home occupation for a teacher be 
less restrictive and allow the teaching of more than one student at a time.  Mr. Gates used the example 
of a music teacher giving lessons to more than one student who were performing at the same level.   
 
Malcolm McNeill - Box 815 - Dover - representing John Madden.  Attorney McNeill submitted the 
following information. 
 



 6 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 7 

 
Mr. Behrendt explained that the proposed change from 15,000 square feet to 6,000 square feet was a 
reasonable density.  There was currently a high demand for rental housing.  This was an area where 
water and sewer is proposed. 
 
Mr. Sylvain closed public input. 
 
 
 



 8 

Mr. Sylvain announced an agenda change.   
 
Mr. Sylvain announced that Mr. Behrendt would be leaving to become the Durham Town Planner.  It 
was believed that Jim Campbell the Durham Town Planner would be assuming Mr. Behrendt’s position 
in Rochester.  A meet and great would be set up in the near future. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Chapter 42 Discussion 
 
Mr. Walker suggested that the board adopt the current dimensional tables for the commercial zones 
that the board has established.  He did not want the board to change what they have. 
 
Mr. Sullivan asked if there were set back problems in the current commercial zones. 
 
Mr. Sylvain stated no. 
 
Mr. Fontneau stated that there was the possibility of a zero foot setback from abutting residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Walker stated that there was that now. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding Neighborhood Mixed Use Zone. 
 
Mr. Sylvain expressed that the basic concerns with the setbacks had been in the Residential Zones.  
He felt they would be able to change when they started putting the map together. 
 
Mr. Behrendt went over the current dimensional standards. 
 
Mr. Walker suggested that the current standards be applied across the board. 
 
Mr. Behrendt explained that there were differences between the Industrial1 and Industrial2 and asked 
which Industrial 1 - Industrial 4 standards the board wished to apply. 
 
Mr. Walker stated that if there was a conflict to go with the least restrictive. 
 
Mr. Behrendt stated that the Industrial 2 would apply. 
 
Mr. Gray stated he would like to see it laid out and voted upon at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Behrendt stated that the board should eliminate the wording under S. “any wall that is not a party 
wall requires a 6 foot side yard with access for fire fighting. 
 
Mr. Sylvain asked that the changes be posted on the web. 
 
The board recessed for at 7:35 p.m. 
 
The board reconvened at 7:40 p.m. 
 
Residential 1 
 
 
 



 9 

Mr. Walker explained that the new table made the assumption that there was water and sewer 
available. 
 
Mr. Fontneau asked for a differentiation. 
 
Mr. Behrendt clarified that nearly all had water and sewer.  The size of the lot needed would be driven 
by environmental concerns and the State DES.  The numbers should be based upon good planning. 
 
Mr. Walker stated assumption was that there was water and sewer in Residential 1 and Residential 2. 
 
Mr. Fontneau stated that the State regulations would supersede the zoning. 
 
Mr. Healey expressed the concern that if the lot was a minimum of 10,000 square feet and individual 
could move in, get started and have to deal with DES. 
 
Mr. Walker stated that the State regulations would apply if there was no water or sewer. 
 
Mr. Sullivan stated he would like maps of where water and sewer are. 
 
Mr. Walker stated that the old regulations allowed a maximum of 30% lot coverage, the new would be 
45%. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the allowed building height. 
 
Mr. Behrendt was to get with Jim Grant to determine the current standard being used. 
 
The board concluded to leave the Residential 1 as is for dimensional requirements.  Eliminate lot 
coverage and clarify height. 
 
Residential 2 
 
Mr. Fontneau wanted to see a lesser setback for sheds. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding setbacks for sheds. 
 
Mr. Walker suggested being 5’ less restrictive for sheds. 
 
Mr. Walker suggested dropping from 12,000 to 9,000 square feet.  He did not see the need to increase 
from single to two family.   
 
The consensus was for single to match two family for lot coverage. 
 
Three & Four Family 
 
Mr. Sylvain asked Mr. Gates how many variances were given out. 
 
Mr. Gates stated not many. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding conformity and frontage. 
 
Mr. Sylvain took a show of hands for 100’ there were 4 members in favor.  There were 3 members in 
favor of 60’.  



 10 

The consensus was to have 80’ of frontage. 
 
Mr. Walker questioned the maximum lot coverage of 45% may be low. 
 
Mr. Behrendt stated that over four units was only allowed by conditional use in the Residential 2. 
 
The consensus was to change the maximum lot coverage from 45 to 60% for 3 & 4 family. 
 
The consensus was to change from 20’ to 15’ on the front setback. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the lot coverage on multifamily.   
 
The consensus was to change to 60% and discuss further 4/30/2012 if needed. 
 
All other uses 
 
Mr. Behrendt questioned the remaining nonresidential uses that were allowed by conditional use and 
special exception. 
 
The consensus was to change to match the 2-family and lot coverage goes away. 
 
Residential 3 
 
Mr. Fontneau explained the problem was in the mapping when Residential 1 areas were changed to 
Residential 3.  He did not feel you should allow multifamily by right in the agricultural zone. 
 
Mr. Sylvain stated he does not want to change someone’s lot so that a neighbor could put in a large 
multi family complex. 
 
There was discussion on spot zoning. 
 
Mr. Walker suggested extending the Residential 2. 
 
Mr. Behrendt stated he was not recommending extending the Residential 2 zone.  There were 
protectors built into the Residential 3 including the minimum of 10 acre lot size for multifamily, 150’ 
buffer from the road and it would need to be on a main arterial road. 
 
Mr. Fontneau expressed that if Residential 3 was eliminated and Residential 2 extended there would be 
more resistance.  We should leave Residential 3 in and look at it when they went to the map. 
 
Table for Residential 3 
 
Mr. Fontneau described the existing subdivision regulations.  
 
The consensus was to leave at 20,000 square feet. 
 
The discussion on frontage was at 100’. 
 
The consensus for single family was for 45,000 square feet for single family with no water or sewer. 
 
Mr. Walker asked that the height for multifamily be checked. 
 



 11 

Single Family Conservation Subdivision 
 
Discussion ensued regarding setbacks and minimum lot area. 
 
The consensus was to change to the single family standard.  Frontage all 125’ and eliminate the 
maximum lot coverage. 
 
A discussion on the nature of the zone took place including the nature of the zone. 
 
The consensus for minimum lot area was 6,000, 8,000, 10,000 and eliminate maximum lot coverage 
and check height. 
 
All other uses 
 
The consensus was to go from 45,000 to 60,000 with a frontage of 125’.  The setbacks were left alone 
with 60% lot coverage. 
 
The board asked to have Jim Grant come to the next meeting to discuss building height. 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Adjournment 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Walker and seconded by Mr. Gray to adjourn at 9:36 p.m.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Marcia J. Gasses 
Planning Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


